
RIECO INDUSTRIES LlMITED
CORPORATE IDENTIFICA nON NUMBER - U241 18MBJ975PLCOI863 1
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31•.2024

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes A. at March 31,2024 As at March 31.2023

As,sETS
1. Non-.current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 1,890.4 1,676.4
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 1.5 1.5
(0) Other intangible assets 5 111.3 146.6
(d) Intangible assets under development 5 3.6 22.0
(0) Right-of-use assets 6 581.7 329.0
(f) Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets 7 87.3 54.1
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 8 334.1 242.4
(b) Tax assets 9 83.1 119.0
(i) Other non-current assets 10 10.2 50.6

3,103.2 2,641.6

ILCurrent .... ets
(a) Inventories II 3,867.8 4,977.1
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 12 6,010.9 5,692,7
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 0.5 0.5
[iii} Bank balance other than (ii) above 13 165.5 409.0
(iv) Other financial assets 14 33.8 10L7

(c) Other current assets 15 6,020.8 5,648.3
16,099.3 16,829.3

Total assets 19.202.5 19470.9

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I.Equity

(a) Equity share capital 16 1,250.0 1,250.0
(b) Other equity 17 1,976.5 1,516.0

Total equity 3,226.5 2,766.0
11.Liabilities
Nen-curreet liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i).Borrowings 18 . 199.1
(ii) Lease liabilities 32 562.4 348.3

(b) Provisions 19 189.5 242.8
751.9 790.2

Currentliabiliti ..
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 18 4,481.8 2.821.8
(ii) Lease liabilities 32 126.9 56.7
(iii) Trade payables
(a) Dues to micro and small enterprises 20 3,167.4 2,890.6
(b) Dues 10other than micro and small enterprises 20 3,088.9 4,232.8

(iv) Other flnancial liabilities 21 584.4 547.7
(b) Other current liabilities 22 3,690.0 5,293.8
(c) Provisions 23 67.9 31.2
(d) Current tax liabilities 10 16.8 40.1

15,224.1 15,914.7

Totalliabilitie. 15976.0 16704.9
Total equity and liabilities 19 02.5 19470.9

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER - U24118MH1975PLC018631
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
Ml!rch 31 2024 March 31 2023

Income
Revenue from operations 24 31,618.2 22,358.3
Other income 25 40.4 95.9
Total income (i) 31658.6 22454.2

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26 18,028.1 13,786.3
(Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress. 27 (285.7) (1,097.9)
Employee benefits expense 28 3,271.1 2,526.2
Finance costs 29 574.0 379.4
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 424.7 282.3
Other expenses 31 9012.6 5444.8
Total expenses (ii) 31024.8 21.321.0

Profit before tax ( iii ) ( i - ii ) 633.8 1 133.2

Tax expense
Current tax 42 265.8 311.1
Deferred tax (9L9 04.0
Total tax expense ( iv ) 173.9 297.1

Profit for the year ( iii - iv ) 459.9 836.1

Other comprehensive income
Items that will be not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-rneasurement gains'(losses) on defined benefit plans 0.8 (27.0)
Income tax effect (0.2 6.8
Otber comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) 0.6 (20.2)

Total comprehensive income for tbe year (net of taxes) 460.5 815.9

Earning per equity share
[Nominal Value per share INR 10 (March 31, 2023 - INR 10)J
Basic (in INR) 34 3.7 6.7
Diluted (in INR) 34 3.7 6.7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER - U24118MH197SPLC018631
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued subscribed and fully paid,
Pa rticula rs Number of shares Amount
Balance as at April I, 2022 1,25,00,000 1,250.0
Changes in equity share capital during 2022-23 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,25,00,000 1,250.0
Changes in equity share capital during 2023-24 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,25,00,000 1,250.0

B.Other equity

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Capital Equity

TotalRedemption Retained earning Genel1ll Reserve contribution from
Reserve holdine company

Balance as at April I, 2022 10.0 385.3 215.5 89.3 700.JProfit for the year - 836.1 - - 836.1
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) - (20.2) - - (20.2)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 815.9 - - 815.9
Balance as at March 31, 2023 10.0 1.201.2 215.5 89.3 1,516.0
Profit for the year - 459.9 - - 459.9
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) - 0.6 - - 0.6
Total comprehensive Income for tbe year - 460.5 - - 460.5
Balance as at March 31 2024 10.0 1,661.7 215.5 89.3 1,976.5

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CORPORA TE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER - U24118MHJ975PLC018631
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD YEAR MARCH 31,2024

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulan Fer the year eoded For the year eoded
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash f1o.wfrom o.perating activities
Profit before tax .633.8 1,133.2

Adjustments fo.r:
Depreciation and amortization expense 424.7 282.3
Finance costs 574.0 379.4
Provision for vendor advances 195.6 -
Allowancefor/(Reversai01) expected credit losses (29.8) (88.7)
Interestincome (29.1) (53.0)
Losson sale of property,plant and equipment 8.3 7.0
Provisionfor inventoryobsolescence 64.8 37.1
Liabilitiesno longerrequiredwrittenback (3.5)
Unrealisedforeignexchnageloss I (gain) (2.1 9.4

Operating prQfit befo.rewDrkingcapital changes 1,840.1 1,703.2

WDrkingcapital adjustments:
lncrease/(Decrease)in trade payables (867.1) 2,985.8
Increasel(Decrease)in provisions (15.7) 66.8
locrease/(Decrease)in other financialliabilities 22.2 80.3
locreasel(Decrease)in other current liabilities (1,603.8) 2,836.5.
(Increase)/Decreasein trade receivables (288.9) (2,138.0)
(Increase)IDecreasein inventories 1,044.5 (3,022.8)
(lncreasej/Decrease in other financialassets 34.6 (38.4)
(Increase)!Decreasein other bankbalances 243.5 117.0
(Increase)/Decreasein other assets (568.0 (2,720.5)

Cash generated from Dperations _l158.4 (130.1)
Incometaxes paid (net of refunds) _l253.1 (211.5)

Net cash f1Dw(used in) Dperating activities (A) (411.5 (341.6)

Cash f1DwSfrom iovesting activities
Purcbaseof property,plant and equipmentand intangible assets (includingcapitalwork-in-progress (445.5) (790.8)
andcapitaladvances)
Proceedsfromsaleof'property, plant and equipmentand intangibleassets 31.2
Interestreceived 29.1 53.0

Net cash f1Dw(used in) investing activities (8) _1385.2) (737.8

Cash f1DWSfrom financing activities:
Proceeds fromcurrentborrowings(net) 1,660.0 1,572,4
Repaymentof long-termborrowings (199.1) (378.4)
Paymentof principalportion oflease liabilities (156.2) (85.3)
Interestpaid _l508.0 (336.]\

Net cash flDWfro.mfmancing activities (C) 796.7 772.6

Net increase I (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A +B+C) (0.0) (306.8)
Casband cash equivalentsat the beginningof the vear 0.5 307.3

Cash and casb equivalents at the end Dfthe year O.S 0,5

Notes:
(i) The aboveCashFlowStatementhas been preparedunder the Indirectmethodset out in IndianAccountingStandard (lnd AS)7 00 Statementof Cash Flows.
(ii)For the purposeof cash flow, cash and cash equivalentscomprise:

Particulan As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Cash en hand 0.5 0.5
With banks:
On currentaccount - -

Total cash and cash equivalents (refer nete 13) 0.5 0.5



RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTIFICA TlON NUMBER - U24118MHl97SPLCOl8631
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD YEAR MARCH 31 ,2024
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

iii) Reconciliation of borrowing
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 Proceeds from 'Repayment of As at March 31, 2024

Non-current borrowing
..
199.1 (199.1)-

Current borrowing 2,622.7 1,660.0 - 4,282,7

Current maturities of non-current bowwowing 199,1 - - 199,1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

1. Background

Rieco Industries Limited ("the Company") was incorporated on October 30, 1975 and is domiciled in India. The registered
office of the Company is located at 1162/2 Shivaji Nagar, Behind Observatoryi Pune, Maharashtra, India - 411005. The CIN
of the Company is U24118MH1975PLC01863~.

The Company manufactures and sells machinery and equipment for grinding solutions, clean air solutions and conveying
solutions.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors on May 16, 2024.

2. Material Accounting Policies:

2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division II of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 20I3 (the "Act") (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as
applicable to the financial statement of the Company.

The fmancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial.assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (refer to accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000), except when
otherwise indicated.

The Companyhas prepared the fmancial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies:

i. Current versus non-current classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.An asset
is treated as current when it is:
• expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
• held primarily for the purpose of trading
• expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
• it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
• it is held primarily for the purpose of trading
• it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.



RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT ANDFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

ii, Foreign currency translation:

The Company's fmancial statements are presented in INR,which is also its functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency's closing rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss except to the extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign
currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalised
as cost of assets.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense, or income (or part
of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the
date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non­
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Company determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

iii. Fair value measurement:

The Company measures fmancial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received on sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a

• Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable



RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The management decides,
after discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.
• disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 2.2 (xxii)

• quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 40)

• financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) (note 40)

iv. Property, plant and equipment:

(a) Recognition and measurement:

An item of property, plant and equipment ('PPE') is recognised as an asset ifit is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. These recognition
principles are applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of PPE, to the pre-operative and trial run
costs incurred (net of sales), ifany, and also to the costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace any part ot:
or service it.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss,
if any. Cost comprises of the purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, if any, and directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of tangible assets which take substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such
assets are ready to be put to use. Cost also includes cost of replacement of part of plant and equipment if the
recognition criteria are met. If significant parts of plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of plant and equipment. The Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non­
refundablepurchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated present value of costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. When a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit
and loss as incurred.

Machinery spares which meet the definition of PPE are capitalized and depreciated over the useful life of the
principal asset.

An itemof property, plant and equipment and any significantpart initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.



RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(b) Depreciation:

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment (except freehold land) is provided on the straight-line
method on pro-rata basis, over the useful lives of assets as prescribed in Schedule - II of the Companies Act, 2013,
except in respect of some assets where, useful life of assets have been determined based on technical evaluation
done by the management's expert:

Asset Class Useful Life Useful Life as per
Adopted Schedule-ll

Plant and Machinerv 10 IS
Plant & Machinery - wooden 5 15
patterns

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
certain items of building, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The Company reviews the estimated residual values and expected useful lives of assets at least annually. In
particular, the Company considers the impact of health, safety and environmental legislation in its assessment of
expected useful lives and estimated residual values.

v. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

(a) Company as a lessee:

(i) Right-of-use assets:

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement oflease liabilities. The cost of right­
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in note 2.2 (xv)
Impairment of non-fmancial assets.

(li) Lease liabilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in­
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period inwhich the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.



RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight­
line basis over the lease term.

(b) Company as a lessor:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in theperiod in
which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from
the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under fmance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

vi. Intangible assets and Intangible assets under development:

(a) Recognition and measurement:

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost and subsequently are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

Internally generated intangible assets arising from development activity are recognised at cost when the project is
clearly defined and the costs are separately identified and reliably measured, on demonstration of technical
feasibility of the project, the intention and ability of the Company to complete, use or sell it is demonstrated,
adequate resources are available to complete the project and only if it is probable that the asset would generate
future economic benefits. Such costs are capitalised as 'Technical know-how'. Otherwise it is recognised as
expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

(b) Amortisation:

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisationmethod for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with fmite lives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefmite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefmite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite
to finite is made on a prospective basis.



RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

A summary of the amortisation! depletion policies applied to the Company's other intangible assets to the extent
of depreciable amount is as follows:

Asset Class Years
Technical know-how 3
Others 3-9

(c) Capital work in progress ("CWIP") and Intangible assets under development

Projects under commissioning and other CWIP items are carried at cost, comprising direct costs, related
incidental expenses and eligible borrowing costs, if any. Intangible assets under development are carried at cost,
comprising direct costs, directly attributable incidental expenses and eligible borrowing costs, if any. Advances
given to acquire property, plant and equipment are recorded as non-current assets and subsequently transferred
to CWIP on acquisition of related assets.

vii. Inventories:

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(a) Raw materials:

Raw materials are valued at cost of purchase net of duties (credit availed W.r.t taxes and duties) and includes all
expenses incurred in bringing the materials to location of use. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

(b) Work-in-process and Finished Goods:

Work-in-process and finished goods include conversion costs in addition to the landed cost of raw materials. In
case finished goods inventory and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads (both fixed
and variable). Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

(c) Stores and spares and packing material:

Stores, spares and tools cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost included cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Provision is made for obsolete and non-moving items.

viii. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

ix. Financial Instruments

The Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a fmancialliability or equity
instrument of another entity.

(a) Financial Assets:

(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant fmancing component or for which the
Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not at
fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical ex .
are m.easured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting poli .EJt¬ 0
2.2 (xi). «- {(,
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Purcha:>es or sales o~ fl1_lancialassets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention m the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i,e., the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(ii) Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
• Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instrument)
• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative

gains and losses (debt instruments)
• Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income with no recycling of

cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instrument):

A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash

flows, and
• Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This
category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (debt instruments):

A 'fmancial asset' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
• The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the

financial assets, and
• The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in
the same manner as for fmancial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are
recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to profit or loss.

The Company's does not have any instrument at fair value through OCI however it generally includes includes
investments in quoted debt instruments included under other non-current financial assets.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity instruments):

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the defmition of
equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments - Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified
as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these fmancial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the fmancial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not h'ect to
impairment assessment. ~8~C & Co<'
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair valuewith net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on listed equity
investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

(iii) De-recognition:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation

to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL) model, for evaluating
impairment of fmancial assets other than those measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).
Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
- The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the
financial instrument that are possible within 12months after the reporting date); or
- Fun lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the life of the financial instrument).

For trade receivables, the Company applies 'simplified approach' whioh requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to
determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default
rates are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
For other assets, the Company uses 12monthExpected Credit Loss to provide for impairment losswhere there
isno significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase incredit risk full lifetime Expected Credit
Loss is used. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

(b) Financial Liabilities:

(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of directly attributable
cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

(ii) Subsequent measurement:
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
• Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value througb profit or loss (FVTPL):
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due to the short maturity of these instruments. The EIR amortisation is included as fmance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition:

A fmancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing fmancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(c) Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

x. Provisions, contingent Liabilities and contingent assets:

(a) Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a fmance cost.

(b) Contingent liabilities:

Contingent liability is:
(i) possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or
(ii) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because;

- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or

- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Company does.not recognize a contingent liability but discloses the same as per the requirements ofInd AS
37.

(c) Contingent assets:

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by­
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity. The Company does not recognize the contingent asset in its fmancial statements since this may result in
the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain,
then the related asset is not a contingent asset and the Company recognize such assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed ilt each Balance Sheet date.
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xi. Revenue:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The Company has concluded that it is principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. Revenue is measured at the amount of
considerationwhich the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or services to a
customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes and
duties collected on behalf of the government).

The disclosures of significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contractswith
customers are provided in Note 2.2 (xxii) (d),

The Company has following streams of revenue:

(a) Revenue from projects:

The Company earns revenue primarily from manufacture and sale of pollution control equipment, size reduction
equipment and pneumatic conveying systems. The equipment are customised based on specific customer
requirements.
Most of the Company's revenue is derived from fixed price contracts and therefore the amount of revenue to be
earned from each contract is determined by reference to those fixed prices. Inrespect of customisedproducts based
on specific customer requirement, each equipment! system is considered as a separate performance obligation.

The Company may promise to provide distinct goods or services within a contract, in which case the Company
separates the contract into more than one performance obligation. If a contract is separated into more than one
performance obligation, the Company allocates the total transaction price to each performance obligation in an
amount based on the estimated relative standalone selling prices of the promised goods or services underlying each
performance obligation. The Company uses the expected cost plus a margin approach to estimate the standalone
selling price of each performance obligation in case of contracts with more than one distinct performance
obligations.

The Company assesses for the timing of revenue recognition in case of each distinct performance obligation. The
Company first assesses whether the revenue can be recognized over a period of time if any of the following criteria
ismet:
• The customer simultaneously consumes the benefits as the Company performs, or
• The customer controls the work-in-progress, or
• The Company's performance does not create an asset with alternative use to the Company and the Company

has right to payment for performance completed till date.

TheCompany recognizes revenue over time as the Company's performance does not create an assetwith alternative
use to the Company and the Company has right to payment got the performance completed till date.

The Company uses cost-based measure of progress (or input method) for contracts because it best depicts the
transfer of control to the customer which occurs as it incurs costs on contracts. Under the cost-based measure of
progress, the extent of progress towards completion is measured based on the ratio of costs incurred to date to the
total estimated costs at completion of the performance obligation. Revenues, including estimated profits, are
recorded proportionally as costs are incurred. .

When it becomes probable that the total contract costs will exceed the total contract revenue, the Company
recognizes the expected losses from onerous contract as an expense immediately.

(b) Revenue from products:

If the criteria for revenue under over-a-period of time as mentioned above are not met, the Company recognizes
revenue at a point-in-time. Revenue from sale of product is recognised at a point in time when control of he asset
is transferred to the customer, on the basis of inco-terms for both domestic and export sales.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations
to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. Indetermining the transaction price f of
goods, the Company considers the effect of variable consideration, the existence of sign' tt':::f~~c::i~
components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, if any. {/)«:-
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(c) Revenue from services:

Revenue in respect of operation and maintenance contract, awarded on a basis or included in long term contracts
and identified as a separate performance obligation, is recognized on a time proportion basis under the contracts.

(d) Contract balances:

(i) Contract assets:
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If
the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration and are transferred to
Trade receivables on completion of milestones and its related invoicing.

(ii) Trade receivables:
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

(iii) Contract liabilities:
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration in form of advance (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company satisfies the performance obligation. Contract
liabilities are recorded in balance sheet as unearned revenue and Customer advances as the case may be.

xii. Post-employment and other employee benefits:

(a) Short Term Employee Benefits:

The distinction between short term and long-term employee benefits is .based on expected timing of settlement
rather than the employee's entitlement benefits. All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering
the service are classified as short-term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term
compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and are recognised in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short­
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(b Post-Employment Benefits:

(i) Defined contribution plans:

The contributions to provident fund are recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the period in
which the employee renders the related service. The Company has no further obligations under these schemes
beyond its periodic contributions.

(ii) Defined benefit plans:

The Company operates defined benefit plan for its employees, viz. gratuity. The present value of the
obligation under such defmed benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary using the Projected Unit CreditMethod as at the date of the Balance sheet. The fair value
of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the defmed benefit plans, to recognise the obligation
on a net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defmed benefit liability), are.recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earningsthrough Other Comprehensive Income in the period
in which they occur. Re-measurernents are not reclassified to the profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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(iii) Compensated absences:

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company
recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based
on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses
are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented
as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an. unconditional right to defer the
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

xiii. Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
. directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till the date the asset is ready for intended
use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the statement of profit and loss during extended
period when active development activity on the qualifying asset is suspended. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred. All borrowing costs are charged to Statement of profit and Loss
for the period for which they are incurred.

xiv. Taxation:

The tax expenses for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income. In which
case, the tax is also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

(a) Current Tax:

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted at the balance.sheet date.

(b) Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred TaxAssets
are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised. In assessing the recoverability of
deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same forecast assumptions used elsewhere in the financial statements
and in other management reports.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside the
Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax itemsare recognised
incorrelation to the underlying transaction either in DCl or directly in equity.



RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(c) Indirect taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses:

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of indirect taxes paid, except:
• When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in

which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition.of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable.

• When receivables andpayables are statedwith the amount of tax included. The net amount of tax recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

xv. Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Inassessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value ofmoney and the risks specific to the asset.In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculationsgenerally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasingrate can bejustified. Inany case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For the assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the
asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed either its recoverable amount,
or the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at March 31 at the CGU level, as
appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

xvi. Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus
shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.
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xvii. Segment reporting:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Board of Directors of the Company has identified the Managing Director as the chief operating
decision maker of the Company.

xviii. Dividends:

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised,
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is
authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is.recognised directly in equity.

xix. Rounding of amounts:
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to nearest lakhs with one decimal as
per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

xx. New and amended standards:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023
dated March 31, 2023 toamend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual period beginning on or after April
01,2023. The Company applied for the first-time these amendments.

(a) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs
to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company's fmancial statements.

(b) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entities to disclose their 'significant' accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
'material' accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have has an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company~s financial statement.

(c) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from Single Transaction-Amendments to Ind AS 12:

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the
Company has recognised a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability
in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the requirements of paragraph
74 ofInd AS 12,there is no impact in the balance sheet. There was also no impact on the opening retained earnings
as at 1stApril 2022.

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS 10I, Ind AS
102,Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 34.

xxi. Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.
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xxii, Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in. future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company's exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

Financial risk management objectives and policies note 38
Sensitivity analysis disclosures notes 38
Capital management note 39

Use of significant Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the followingjudgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(a) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - Company as lessee:
TheCompany determines the lease term as the non-cancellableterm of the lease, together with anyperiods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certainwhether or not to exercise the option to renew Or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

Refer note 32 for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of
extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term.

Estimates and Assumption:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(a) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate to measure lease liabilities

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term; and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company
'would have to pay', which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the rnR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

(b) Useful life of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:
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depreciation charge could be revised and may have an impact on profit for future years. The policy for the same
has been explained in note 2.2 (iv) and 2.2 (vi).

(c) Recognition of deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the
periods in which those temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards become deductible. The Company
considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making this
assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near
term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced. The policy for the same has
been explained under note 2.2 (xiv).

(d) Determination of timing of satisfaction of performance obligations:

At each reporting date, for projects, the Company is required to estimate costs to complete on fixed-price contracts.
Estimating costs to complete on such contracts requires the Company to make estimates of future costs to be
incurred, based on work to be performed beyond the reporting date. This estimate will impact revenues, cost of
sales, work-in progress, billings in excess of costs, estimated earnings and accrued contract expenses.

The Company concluded that sale of goods is to be recognised at a point in time because it does not meet the
criteria for recognising revenue over a period of time. The Company has applied judgement in determining the
point in time when the control of the goods are transferred based on the criteria mentioned in the standard read
along with the contract with customers, applicable laws and considering the industry practices. The goods
manufactured by the Company are on the basis of the open purchase order as on date and the order expected to be
received. Further, the dispatch of goods are dispatch as per the terms mentioned in the purchase order.

(e) Defined benefit obligation:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, other defined benefit plan and other post-employment plans are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
expected returns on plan assets and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long­
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is tbe discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of
such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly availablemortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases, discount tate and return on planned
assets are based on expected future inflationrates for India. Further details about defined benefit plans are given in
Note 2.2 (xii),

(1) Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Further, the Company also evaluates risk with respect to expected loss on account
of loss in time value of money which is calculated using average cost of capital for relevant financial assets. The
policy for the same has been explained innote 2.2 (ix).

(g) Provision for inventory obsolescence:

The Company identifies slow and non-moving stock of all inventories on an ongoing basis. These ~~:Ii§.

then classified based on their expected shelf life to determine the possibility of utilisation / liqll)·~t16J:I..nJ~~
materials. Based on this study, a provision for slow and non-moving inventory is created. rr;,'<:-
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(h) Litigation:

The Company has various ongoing litigations, the outcome of which may have a material effect on the financial
position, results of operations or cashflows.The Company's legal team regularly analyses current information about
these matters and assesses the requirement for provision for probable losses including estimates of legal expense
to resolve such matters. In making the decision regarding the need for loss provision, the management considers
the degree of probability of an unfavourable outcome and the ability to make sufficiently reliable estimate of the
amount of loss. The filing of a lawsuit or formal assertion of a claim against the Company or the disclosure of any
such suit or assertions, does not automatically indicate that a provision of a loss may be appropriate. Considering
the facts on hand and the current stage of certain ongoing litigations the Company foresees a remote risk of any
material claim arising from claims against the Company. The Management has exercised significantjudgement in
assessing the impact, if any, on the disclosures in respect of litigations in relation to the Company.
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3 Property, plant and equipmenl

A) Reconciliation or •• r",m •. amo.nl
Freehold Leasehold Buildiags Planl Md Vehicles Furniture Office Tolal

Partkulan land Improvements Equipment and fbtures Equipments

Gross carrying .",ounlas al April 1, 2022 0.6 147.1 671.S 106.7 40.7 51.5 L,018.3
Additions 44.0 4S3.2 467.5 39.9 64.7 16.7 1,116.0
Disposals 2.4 I.S - - 4.2
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, lOll 0.6 44.0 62,;9 1,137.5 146.6 105.4 68.2 2,130.1

Accumulaled depreciation as al April 1,2022 - 31.2 191.0 59.9 6.0 13.1 J01.1
Depreciation for the year 0.9 12.0 110.7 14.4 6.6 10.3 154.9
Disposals 0.9 1.5 - 2.3
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 10lJ - 0.9 42.3 300.2 74.3 12.6 23.4 453.7
Net carrying amount as at March 31, lOlJ 0.6 43.1 585.6 837.3 72.3 92.8 44.8 1,676.4

Particulars Freebold Leasebold BlliIding. Planland Vehicles Furniture Office Total
land Imnrovemeou Enuioment and fi.ltures _Equipments

GroJI carryiDg amount as at Aprill, lOll 0.6 44.0 627.9 1,137.5 146.6 105.4 6S,2 2,130.1
Additions - 57.2 7.3 374.0 23.2 15.7 8.3 485.7
Disposals 19.9 82.3 4.5 106.7
Gross carrying amouat as at March 31, 2024 0.6 101.2 635.2 1,491.6 87.5 116.6 76.5 2,509.1
A«umulated deprecialion .. al April I, 2023 - 0.9 42.3 300.2 74.3 12.6 23.4 453.7
Depreciation for the year - 5.6 28.8 15S.9 IS.S 11.2 13.6 236.9
Disposals - 2.7 65.0 4.3 71.9
A«umulated depreciation .. al March 31. 2024 - 6.5 71.1 456.4 28.1 23.8 32.7 618.7
Net carrying lUIIouola. at Marcb 31, 2024 0.6 94.7 564.1 1,035.2 59.4 92.8 43.8 1,890.4

B) The Company has pledged certain property and equipments against borrowing, the details of which have been given in the note IS.
C) The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.
D) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
E) Assets include assets lying with third parties amounting to INR 15.27 lakhs (March 31, 2023' INR 25.6Iakhs)

4 Capital work-in-progress

A) Retonciliation or carryina amount
Particulan Amount
Gross carrying amounl.u .1 April I, 2011 276.S
Additions 195.6
Transferred toProperty, plant and equipment 470.9
Gross carrying amouDt as at Marth 31_,2023 1.5

Gross carrying amounl .. at April 1,2023 1.5
Additions
Transferred to Property, plant and equipment
Grog c:.rry~Dgamount uat March 31, 2024 1.5

B) FoUowing is tbe ageing schedule ror CapitaJ work.in-progress

Marcb 31, 2023
Particulars M-ore than 3Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 yean years Total
Projects in progress 1.5 1.5
Projects temporarily suspended -

Marcb 31, 1024
Partic.ulan More than 3

TotalLess than I year 1-1 yean 2-3 yean years
Projects in progress - 1.5 - 1.5
Projects temporarily suspended -
qThere are no projecu whose completion is overdue or have exceeded their cost compared the original plan.
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5 I) Otber Intangible .... Is

A) Reconciliation or carryma; amount

Technical Know- ComputerParticulars how (Internally Total
G_rated) SOftware

Gross carrying amount .. at Apr~ 1,2022 87.2 213.7 300.9
Additions 4.5 15.4 19.9
Disposals - 53.8 53.8
GI"f)'5S'carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 91.7 175.3 267.0

Accumulated.amortisation .. ·at Apr~ 1, 2022 19.7 87~3 10.1.0
Amortisation for the year 29.1 33.0 I 62.1
Disposals 48.7 48.7
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023 48.8 71.6 120.4
Net carrying amount.a. atMarch 31, 2023 42.9 103.7 146.6

Technic:alKnow-
ComputerParticulars how (IntemaUy Tot.1

Generated) Software

Gross carrying amouot as at Aprill, 2023 91:1 175.3 267.0
Additions 18.4 17.0 35.4'
Disposals - 23.3 23.3
Gross carrying amount- as at Marcb '31, 2024 110.1 169.0 279.1

Accumulated amortisation .. at Apru .I, 2023 48.8 71.6 120.4
Amortisation for the year 30.6 35.4 66.0
Disposals '- 18.6 18.6
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2024 79.4 88.4 167.8
Net carrying amcunt .. at March ll, 2024 lO.7 80.6 111.3

B) Tbe Company has not rovalued its intangible ... ets during the finantial year ended March.ll, 1024and March 31, 2023.

II) Intangible assets under developm.nt

A) Reconciliation or carryi02 am'ount

Technical Know-
ParyicuJan II." (.Internally

Generated)

Gross carrying amount as at Aprill, 2012 29.4
Additions
Other Adjustment' (2.9)
Transferred to other intangible assets ("45
Gross carrying amount as at March ll, 2023 22.0.'Includes asset wntten off I provided for during the year

Technical Know·

Particulars how (Internally
Generated)

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2023 22.0
Additions
Transferred to other intangible assets (18.4)
Gross carrying amount as at Marcb 31, 2024 l.6

B)FoUowiog is the ageing schedule ror IDQl.ogihle assets under development

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

1-2 yean 2-3 yean 'Mor, than
3vean

22.0

Particular!
March 31, 2Q13

TotalLese than I year

22,0

,22.0 22.0

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

1-2 yean

3.6

TotalParticulars
March 31, 2024

Less than 1 year 2-3 years More than
l years

l.6

3.6 3.6
There are no projects whose completion IS 'overdue 'or have, exceeded their cost compared the anginal plan.
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Rigbt-of-use lW.ts

~ Reconciliation of carryinl amoont
Particulars

Buildi~.Gross carrying amount .. at April I, lOll 372.2
Additions

105.2
Deletions
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, lOll 477.4
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 1022 83.1
Depreciation for the year 65.3
Deletions -
Accumulated depreciation .. at March 31, 20ll 148.4
Net carrying amount ... at Marcb 31, 1013 329.0

ParticuJars Buildings
Gross carrying amount as at Aprill, lOll 477.4
Additions 374.5
Deletions -
Gnm carrying amount AI at March 31 9 2024 851.9
Accumulated depreciation as .t· April 1, 20ll 148.4
Depreciation for the year 121.8
Deletions
Accumulated depreciation .. at Marcb 31 , 2024 170.2
Net carrying amount uat March 31 , 1024 SSI.7

7 Other nen-curreet financial auets

Particulan A. at March As.t March
31,2024 31,2023

Security deposits 87.3 54.1
Total 87.3 54.1
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8 Deferred tax ... ets (net)

ParticuJars As at March 31, 1024 Asat Marcb 31, 2023

Deferred tunability relates 10 be following:
- Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 59.3 59A

59.3 59.4
Deferred tax alsets relates'to be foUowing:
- Expenditure allowed on actualpayment 161.4 142.1
- Allowance for expected credit loss 68,9 76.3
- Other (includes inventory obsolescence and other provisions) 163.1 83.4

393.4 301.S

Deferred Ial assets (net) 334.1 242.4

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not be realised. The ultimate
realisation of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the.generation offuture taxableincome during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible.

Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and ·tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the
level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the. deferred income tax assets are deductible,' management believes that the
company will realise the beneftts of those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the. near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

Statement of profit and Loss
Deferred tne.peasel(income} For the year ended Marcb For tbe year ended March

31 2024 31.2023
Deferred tax relates 10 the following:
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose 0.1 (23.3)
Other deductible temporary differences 79.7 5.4
Allowance for expected credit loss (7.~) (13.4)
Expenditure allowed on actualpayment 19.3 52.1
Accumulated tax losses
Deferred tax expense/(income) 91.6 20.8

9 Income Ia•.... ts (net)

Particulars A. al March 31, 2024 As.1 March 31, lOll

(a) Non"currenl lax assets (net)
Income tax assets 685.1 283.5
Income tax liabilities 602.0 164.5
-Non-current income tas as_&etl (net) 83.1 119.0

(b) Current Ialliabilities (nel)
Income tax assets 181..3 331.7
Income tax liabilities 198.1 371.8
Currenl income lax liabililies (oet) 16.8 40.1

10 Otber non-curreet a9:S~tI

As at March 3J 2024 A. at March 31 2023
10.2 50.6
10.2 50.6

No advances are due from directors or other officers of the company.. firms in which director is a partner or private companies' in which director is a director or a member either
severally or jointly with any other person except as disclosed in note 49.

11 Inventories

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Raw materials (includes items lying with third party) 1,303.7 2,647.2
Work-in-progress (includes items lying with third party) 2.148:6 2,199.2
Finished goods (includes items lying with third party) 340.4 4.1
Stores and spare.. (includes items lying with third party) 75.1 12M

3,867.8 4,977.1

For details of inventory pledged as security refer note 18
The above amount is net of provision for slow-moving-l non-moving inventory oflNR. 232.4lakhs (March 31, 202J·INR. 167.71akhs)
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12 Trade Receivables

Particulars A. at March 31,2024 As a{ Marcb 31, 2023

Unsecured
Considered good 6,071.5 5,852.2
Credit impaired 212.9 143.8

6,284.4 5,996.0
Less:
Impainnent allowance (allowance for bad and -doubtful debts including expected credit loss)
Credit impaired 212,9 143,8
Considered good 60.6 159.5

2.73.5 303.3
6,010.9 5,692.7

No accounts receivables are due :from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person, Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are
generally on terms of 0 to 180 days, For terms and conditions related to related party receivables, refer note 49.

For details of trade receivables pledged as security refer note 18

Followinll is the ageing schedule for' Trade Receivabl es

As atMarcb 31 2024
Oubtandill for the followin2 periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Not Due Leas tban 6 month.-

1-2 years 2-3 years More than
Total6 months 1 year 3 years

Undisputed. _Considered good 1,701.6 2,802.9 811.5 527,8 160,9 66,' 6,071.5
Undisputed _which have significant _ _

';
_ -increase in credit risk

Undisputed - Credit impaired - _ -
Disputed _Considered good - - - -
Disputed _which have significant increase _ - -in credit risk
Disputed _Credit impaired - _

26,5 49,7 136:7 212.9
1701.6 2802.9 811.5 SS4.3 210.7 203.4 6,284.4

Note: Above figures do not include provision for expected credit loss amountmg to INR 273.5 lakhs

As at March 31, 2023

3,911.1

Oubtandin for tbe following period. Jrom due dateof payment

162,8 44.2 60.2 5,852.2

Particulars

Undisputed _Considered good
Undisputed - whichhave significant
increase in credit risk
Undisputed - Credit impaired
Disputed _Considered good
Disputed _which have significant increase
in credit risk
Disputed _Credit impaired 0,0

1,343,8 330.1

1-2 yea .. 2-3 years Moretban
3 years TotalNot Due Less thllD 6 month. -

6 months 1 year

35,0 108,g 143.8
3,911.1 1.343.8 330.1 162.9 79.3 169;0 5996.0

Note. Above figures do not include provtsion for expected creditloss amountmg to INR 303,3 lakhs

13 A) Cash and cash equivalents

ParticuJars A. at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(a) Balances with banks
In current accounts -

(h) Cash on hand 0.5 05.
0.5 O.S

B Bank balance otber than above

Margin money' deposits 165.S.

Particulars A. at·March 31 2024 As at March 31 2023

165.5
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14 Other current linaneial usetl

P.rticulan A. at March 31,2024 As at Morch 31,2023
Security deposits 18.1 18:4MEIS scrips in hand - 6.5
Stamp duty refund receivable - 12.0
Gratuity receivable 15.7 15.6
Export benefits receivable 49.2

33.8 101.7

15 Other current a_netS

Particulars As at Ma.rch 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023

Unsecured , conoidered good
Advance to suppliers 625.9 686.2
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (285.7 (90.1

340.2 596.1
Contract assets (refer note 44) 5,191.4 4,192.5
Balances with government authorities 318.0 669.5
Prepaid expenses 165.2 139.9
Others 6.0 50.4

6,020.8 5,648.3

No advances are due from directors or other officers of the company, rums in which director is a partner or private companies inwhich director is a director or a member either
severally or jointly with any other person except lISdisclosed in not. 49.
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16 Equity sbare capital

Particulars As at Marcb 31, As at Marcb 31,
2024 2023

Autborised :
1,7000,000 Equity Shares oflNR 10 each 1,700.0 1,700.0
Issued, subscribed and fuUy paid up :
1,25,00,000 Equity Sbares oflNR 10/- eacb fully paid up as atMarch 31,2024
(1,25,00,000 Equity Shares ofINR 10/· each fully paid up as at March 31, 2023) 1,250.0 1,250.0

(a) Reconciliation of tbe shares outstanding at tbe beginning and at the end of the year:

As at Marcb 31, 2024 As at Marcb 31, 2023
Equity Shares Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning of the year 1,25,00,000 1,250.0 1,25,00,000 1,250.0
Add: Issued during the year - . . -
Less: Shares bought back during the year - . - .
Outstanding at tbe end of the vear 1,25,00,000 1,250.0 1,25,00,000 1,250.0

(b) Termsl Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share (Previous Year: INR 10 each). Each holder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the
Borad of Directors bave not recommended dividend to equity shareholders. (March 31, 2023 : Nil per share)

In the event of liqnidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details ofsharebolders bolding more than 5% shares in the company:

Particulars As at March.31, 2024 As at Marcb 31, 2023
Number Amount Number Amount

Sudarshan Chemical Industries Limited • 1,25,00,000 1,250.0 1,25,00,000 1,250,00
% Holding 100% 100% 100% 100%..* Includes 6 shares held by individuals on behalf of Sudarshan Chemical Industries Limited

(d) For a period of five years immediately preceding Marcb 31, 2024 :
• aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash- Nil
- aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares • Nil
- aggregate number of shares bought back - Nil

(e) As per the records of tbe company including in required of shareholders/ member and otber declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest the above sbareboIding represents legal ownersbip of sbares.

(I) The Company does not bave any Promoters as defined in Companies Act, 2013 and hence disclosure of sbarebolding pattern for
promoter is not applicable.
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17 Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Capital redemption reserve 10.0 10.0
Retained earnings 1,661.7 1,201.2
General reserve 215.5 215.5
Equity contribution from holding company 89.3 89.3

1976.5 1516.0

(a) Movement in other equity

Particulars As at March 3h 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Capital redemption reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 10.0 10.0
Balance as at the end of the year 10.0 10.0

Retained earnings
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,201.2 385.3
Add: Profit for the year 459.9 836.1
Add: Other comprehensive income 0.6 (20.2'
Balance as at the end of the year 1,661.7 1,201.2

General reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 215.5 215.5
Balance as at the end of the year 215.5 215.5

Equity contribution from holding company
Balance as at the beginning of the year 89.3 89.3
Balance as at the end ofthe year 89.3 89.3

(b) Nature and purpose of each reserve within equity:

(i) Capital redemption reserve:

This reserve has been created pursuant to buyback of equity share capital and as mandated by the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that
will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) General reserve
General reserve. is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. It is
created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income.

(iv) Equity contribution from parent company
The fair value of bank guarantee provided by the holding company, Sudarshan Chemicals India Limited to enable Rieco Industries
Limited, to avail bank: frnance at concessional rates has been classified as "Equity contribution from holding company" in
accordance with Ind AS 109.
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18 Borrowin25

Particulars As ItMordl31, 2024 As at Marth 3J, 1023
A) Noa-current iKIrrowinp

Sec:u"'"
F.... b_

Unsecured
T..... "' ... fromb_

Rupee loans (rcler nolA:(a) below) 199.1
Total nOD-alrrmt borrowinp 199.1
B) C.......... borrow ....

Secured
Fromb_

Rupee IDiUlS (refer nolA:(b) below) 1.610.7 1.463.6
U..........
Fromb_

Rupee loans (refer noIe' (e) below) 2.672.0 1.159.1
Cu",,", maturities of DOIl-currentborrowings (rcler note (0) below) 199.1 199.1
TotaJ (urrart borrowinas 4<181.8 2.821.8

Note: -
a) Tbe term loao canieo in_ @i) repo ra te + 2.5% and is backed by corporate guaran tee from Sudatsban Chemical Industries Limited.
b) Tbe worlcing capilalloans from various banks carry inti:rest@ n:po rate +2.5% and @ n:po linkedloao rate + 0.7%. The working caphal loans are secured by h~ of invomOlY,receivablesand moveable
fixed ...... and ~ by corporate guarantee from Sudarshan Chemical Industries Limited.
,) Tbeworking capital loans fromvarioos banks carry inIereSI@9to 10%pcr iIJIDUITI.

d) Tbe Company files moothlyl quarterly _ for receivables, payables and inventory with banks. Further, pursuant 10subsequent adiustmeol ifany post closures of yearly books and statutory audit, the Company
files tbe revised n:tum with the updated amounts,at the year end.

e) Tbe charges or satisfaction 011 the assets of the Company are registeredwith Registrar of Companies within the the statutory period. TheCoinpaDy does DOlbave 'any charges or satisfactioo which are yet 10be
registered with Registmr of Companies(ROC) b<yood statutory period.
f) Tbc Company bas used the borrowing. obtained from banks and financial institutioos for the specific purpose for whiChthey were _ durina the year ended Mareb 31, 2024 audMarch 31, 2023.
g) Tb< Company basDOl_ declarod a wilful defaulter by any bank, financial inslitutioo, govemmen~ or governmenl authority.
b) Tb< oompauy bas _ sauctiooed a fund based limit oflNR 3,000 Jakhs and oon-fund based limil oflNR 9,000 Jakhs in respect of working capital 1iI<:iliticsby its bankers.

19 Provisioas: aoDooCurrent

Particulan: A•• , Morm 31 2024 As .t .Morch 31 2013
ProvUiOa (or employee beoefit&
Provi,iOo for ~ ahseoces (refer nolA:37) 133.9 119J
Provisioo fOr gratuity (relet ""'" 37) 55.6 123.7

189.5 242,8
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20 Trado payabla

Particulan As at March 31, 2024 AI at Marth 31, 2023
DIles 10micro and omaIlent<rpri... (refer note 35) 3,167,4 2,890,6
Dues to other than micro ~ small enterprises 3088,9 4,232,6

6.l56.3 7123,2
Followin&is the aleio! I(hedulc for trade payables
As at M b 31 2024arc

Outstandin.e for the followinl periods form due date of DevmentParticulars Les. thanUnbilltd* NotDuc
Ivear 1-2 year. l-3y .... More than 3 years Total

T<iIaJoulslanding dues of micro enterprises
3,097.1 70,3 3,167.4and small enterpriS<S(Undisputed) -

T0!aI Oulslanding dues of creditors other Ihan
micro enterpriseS lind smaU enterprises 421.4 1,361.6 1,232,7 63,6 3.4 6,2 3,088,9
(Undisputed)
Total outstanding cbsof micro enterprises
and small enterprises (DispUUld) - -
T<iIaJOulslanding dues of creditors,other Ihan
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(Disputed)

Total 421.4 4438,7 1.302 ,0 63,6 3.4 6.1 6.256.3

A. at March 31 2023

Total

1 veer 1-2y .... 2-3yean More thaD 3 yean Total

418,6

Outstandin. for the foUo-trin... riods form d .. date of Da.ment

800.0 0,6

15,5 3,8

2,890.6

Particulan
U.biUed· NotD .. Leulb..

Total outstilnding dues of micro enterprises
and omaIlenterprises (Undisputed)
Total 0UIstanding dues of creditors O!hei than
micro enterprises and smaJl enterprises
(Undisputed)
T<iIaJ... Islandingdues of micro earerprises
and small eeterprises (Disputed)
Tota1 Outstaoding dues of creditor> other Ihan
microenterpriS<S and small enterprises
(DlSDUtedl

2,090,0

1,325,8 2,428,2 40.8 4,232.6

418.6 3415.8 3218.1 41.4 15.5. 3.8 7123.2
·unbdled represa:u..s accrual fOT expenses_

Trade payablcs are ooo-inlerest bearing and are generally settled 00 60-90 day terms.
The above amountof trade payables is oet of certain reeeivables against supply of goods, The company currently has • legally enforceable right to set off the receivables against the respective payables. The company
intends to settle-these amounts on net basis.

21 Other cu..... t IiDaocioJ tiabilities
Particulln A. at March 31 1014 As at March 31 ZOll
EmpIO}'<!ldues 561.9 469,8
Payable for capital goods 14,5 67,9
COO'ln'liSsionpayable todirectors 8.0 W,O

584,4 547;7

12 Other current liabititios
r.rticulan As at March 31 2024 As at March 31 lO13
Statutorydues # 98.6 80,2
COOll3d liabilities S 3591.4 5213.6

3690.0 5.293.8

# includes payables in ..,._ to IDS, GS't. PF. ESIC eIl:,
SThe Contract liabilities relate to unearned revenue and customer advances where performanceobligations an: yet to be fulfilledas pet me contracts. ~ fulfilment of the performanceobligationswill extinguishthese
liabilities IlDdrevenue will be ~ with DO impact on the Company's cash positions on specific:projects.

2J Provisions·Current
Particulars As at March 31 1024 As It'March 31 1013
Provisioa ror emplqyee benefits :
Provisioo for 00f1lI)CUSaI0d ab_l:ieS (refer note 37) 55.6 31.2
Other ProvitiolU
ProVision for Warranties (refer DOte 38) 12.3

67.9 31.2
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24 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue from projects and products 31,344.9 22,OS1.9
Revenue from services 2733 262.3
Total revenue from contracts with customers (refer note 44) 31,618.2 22,314.2

Other operating revenue
Export incentives - 44.1

31,618:2 22,358.3
25 Other income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

Interest income
- On incometax refund 14.4 4.9
- Bankdeposits 14.7 4S.3
- Other interestincome - 2.8
Commissionincome - 31.9
Liabilitiesno longerrequiredwrittenback - 3.S
Miscellaneousincome 11.3 7.5

40.4 95.9
26 Cost of material consumed

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

Inventoryat the beginningof the year (refernote 11) 2,647.2 825.4
Add:Purchases 16,684.6 IS,608.1

19,331.8 16,433.5
Less: Inventoryat the end of the year (refernote 11) 1,303.7 2,647.2

18,028.1 13,786.3
27 (Increase) in inventories offioished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

Inventories at the beginning oHhe year (refer note 11)
Finishedgoods 4.1 335.3
Work-in-progress 2,199.2 770.1
Total (a) 2,203.3 1,105.4
Inventories at the end of the year (refer note 11)
Finishedgoods 340.4 4.1
Work-in-progress 2,148.6 2,J99.2
Total (b) 2,489.0 2,203.3
(Increase) in Inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress (a-b) (285.7) (1,097.9)
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28 Employee benefit expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Salaries,wagesand bonus (includingdirector'sremuneration) 2,988.8 2,305.2
Contributionto providentand other funds 140.5 111.4
Gratuityexpense 31.9 24.9
Staffwelfareexpenses 109.9 84.7

3,271.1 2,526;2

29 Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interestexpenseson bank facilities 250.2 245.6
Interestexpenseson otherborrowings 201.8 46.2
Interestexpenseon lease liabilities 66.2 43.3
Otherborrowing.costs* 55.8 44.3

574.0 379.4
*mcludeschargesfor guarantees,loan processing chargesetc.

30 D 'f d rt' f~recla IOnan amo ISa Ion expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Depreciationon property,plant and equipment(refernote 3) 236.9 154.9
Amortisationon intangibleassets (refernote 5) 66;0 62.1
Depreciationon right-of-useassets (refer note 6) 121.8 65.3

424.7 282.3
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31 0 ht er expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Consumption of stores and spares 459.8 618.0
Power and fuel 265.9 81.5
Contract labour charges 2,045.7 1,562.4
Hire Charges 2,418.1 619.0
Rent (refer note 32) 73.7 26.6
Repairs and maintenance
- Buildings 3.7 16.4
- Others 90.1 95.3

Insurance 90.3 79.6
Rates and taxes (excluding taxes on income) 156.0 43.0
Advertisement 51.7 43.6
Payment to auditors (refer note 36) 12.1 7.1
Bad debts written off 121.2 44.6
Other balances written off 85.6 0.0
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (including expected credit loss) 195.7 39.7
Allowance for/(reversal of) expected credit loss (29.8) (88.7)
Bank charges 69.4 97.2
Commission to selling agents 124.3 118.6
Freight and forwarding expenses 860.0 554.4
Director's sitting fees (refer note 47) 6.6 9.4
Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss (net) 28.1 19.7
Legal and professional expenses 584.0 301.3
Printing, stationery and communication expenses 30.7 32.2
Travelling and conveyance expenses 760.1 636.6
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 45) 14.0 13.0
Director's commission (refer note 47) 8.0 10.0
Royalty 18.7 79.9
Loss on sale/ discard of assets 8.3 7.0
Safety Services 98.0 78.0
Subscription 140.3 101.8
Provision for warranties (refer note 38) 12.3 -
Miscellaneous expenses 210.3 197.6

9,0t:Z.6 5,444.8

Miscellaneous expenses include office expenses, sales expenses. and IT expenses etc.

-------------------------------------------------------------------- --- -- -----
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32 Leases
The effective interest rate for the lease liability is a weighted average incremental borrowing rate on the basis of exsisting
borrowings was considered as incremental borrowing rate. The incremental borrowing rate used was within range of 10% -
11.30%depending on the amount involved and tenure of the lease agreement.

The company also has certain leases of various assets with lease term of 12months or less, and with low value of lease rent.
The companyapplies "short term lease" and "lease of low value assets" .recognition exemption for these leases.

Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2022 341.8
Add: Addition during the year 105.2
Add: Interest accrued on lease liability 43.3
Less: Cash outflows for leases (85.3)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 405.0
Balance as at April 1, 2023 405.0
Add: Addition during the year 374.5
Add: Interest accrued on lease liability 66.2
Less: Cash outflows for leases (156.2)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 689.5

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 3~, 2.023
Current 126.9 56.7
Non Current 562.4 348.3
Total 689.3 405.0

Amounts recognized in profit and loss account -

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended March
31,2024 31,2023

Interest expense on lease liabilities 66.2 43.3
Expenses realting to short term lease 73.7 26.6
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 121.8 65.3

A , d i h t t t f h flmounts recogmse lD t e s a emen 0 cas ow

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended March
31,2024 31,2023

Total cash outflowfor leases 156,2 85.3

Th bl b I id d 'I d' h tit T fl r biliti d' t db'eta e e ow provi es etai s regar 109 t e con rae ua rna uri res 0 . ease ia I lies on an un iscoun e asis:
Particulars As at March 31 2024 As at March 31,2023
(a) Less than 1 year 194.5 98.2
(b) 1 to 5 years 642,3 359.0
(c) More than.5 years 44.5 100.8



RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER - U24118MB1975PLC018631
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

33 Commitments and contingencies:

A) Capital commitment:
The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, and not provided for is INR 30.72 lakhs as at March 31,
2024 (INR 210.9Iakhs, as at March 31, 2023).

B) Claims against the Company where the Company has preferred appeals
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Sales tax ! Valueadded tax 5.5 28.4
Goods and.services tax 79.3 77.7
Incometax 38.1 -

122.9 106.1

(i) It is not practicablefor the company to estimate the timing of cashfJow,if any, in respect of the above, pending resolution of the
respectiveproceedingas it is determinable only on receipt of Judgement!decision pendingwith various form! authorities. The companyhas
accused that it is only possible, but not probable that outflow of economic resourceswill be required in this regard.
(ii) The companydoes not expect any reimbursement in respect of abovecontigent liability.
(ui) The company'spending litigationscomprise of claims against the company pertaining to proceedings pending with IT,Sale! VAT and
GST authorities.The company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedingsand has adequately provided for where provisionare
required and disclose as contingent liabilitieswhere applicable. The companydoes not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a
materiallyadverseeffect on financial statement.

C) Other litigations
There are several other cases which have been determined as remote or have been provided in the books by the Company and hence not
been disclosedabove.
D) Guarantee excluding financial guarantees:
The companyhas given guarantees to customers as performance bank guarantee,amounting to INR 3,278.9 Lakhs. The management has
consideredthe probabilityof outflow of the same as remote.

34 Earnings per share

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
Marth 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Profits attributable to equity shareholders 459.9 836.1
Basic earnings per share
Weightedaveragenumber of equity shares outstanding during the year 125.0 125.0

3.7 :1 6.7
Diluted earnings per share
Weightedaveragenumber of equity shares outstanding for diluted earnings per share 125 125

3.7 6.7

35 Details of dues to micro and small enterprise defined under Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March.31,2023

Principalamount due to suppliers underMSMED Act, 2006 3,167.4 2,890.6
Interest accruedand due to suppliers under MSMEDAct, 2006 on the above amount 42.9 18.9
Paymentmade to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year 1,172.3 4,909.9
Interest paid to suppliers underMSMED Act, 2006 (other than section 16) - -
Interest paid to suppliers underMSMED Act, 2006 (section 16) - -
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 for the payments already - -made
inreresr accrueo ana remaunng unpaid ar me eno or me year TOsuppliers unoer me M~MbU 111.8 53.8..,nn"

The identificationof suppliers under the "Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" was done on the basis on the
informationto the extent providedby the supplier to the Company

36 Payment to auditors

As auditor:
- Audit fees
- Reimbursementof expenses

11.0
1.l

7.0
0.1

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

12.1 7.1
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37 Pest-employment l!endit plans

A. Defined contribntion plans
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognized as expense for the year is as under:

For the year ended
March '31 2024

For the year ended
March 31 2023

rovident funds and other funds 140.5 1JI:4

The Company's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident-fund and labour welfare fund are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B.Defined Benefit·Plans
L Gratuity

Funded Scheme:
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed
five years of-service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age. These
benefits are funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

Risk exposure and asSet-liability matching:
Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, as The Holding Company and its dOmesticsubsidiary take on uncertain long term obligations to make future
benefit payments.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in tbe statement of profit and loss, the funded status and amounts
recognized in halance sheet for the plan.

Net emnlovee benefit exDenseon account of I!ratuitv recoznlzed in emnlovee benefits expenses

PartiCulars For tbe year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

Current service cost 3,1.9 24.9
Net interest expense 7.8 604
Net benefit expense 39.7 31.3

Net interest emense I (income)

Particulars For the year ended For tbe year ended
March 31 2024 Marcb 31 2023

interest expense on defined benefit obligation 11.6 11.4
interest (income) on plan assets (3.8 (5.0
Total net interest cost 7.8 6.4

Ch h fhdfiedb fi bl' JiUanges m t e present va ue 0 t e em ene It 0 'llgahon are as 0 ows :

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 175.5 144,4
Interest cost 11.6 11.4
Current service cost 31.9 24.9
Benefits paid from plan assets (18.1) (29.8)
Re-rneasurement (gain)/Ioss in other comprehensive income
Experience(gain)lloss on plan liabilities 16.3 10.2
Demograpbic (gain)lloss on plan liabilities (lOA) (0.0)
Financial (gain)f loss on Dianliabilities .14.6 14.4

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 202.2 175:5

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars For the 'year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 Ma'rch J1 2023

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 51.8 7404
Expected return on plan assets 3.8 5.0
Employer contributions 101.3 1.7
Benefit payments from plan assets (12.3) (26.9)
Re-measurement gain I (loss) in other comprehensive income

(2.4'Experience gain I (loss) on plan assets 2.1
Fair value of plan assets at tbe end of the year 146.7 51.8
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A ized' h f h h. mount recozm m t e statement 0 .ot er compre ensrve mceme

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

Experience (gain) / loss on plan liabilities 16.3 10.2
Demographic (gain) / loss on plan liabilities (10.4) (0.0)
Financial (gain) / loss on plan liabilities (4.6) 14,4
Experience (gainl-/loss on plan assets J2.1 2,4
Total Actuarial (gain)lloss included in Other Comprehensive Income _!0.8 27.0

Amount to be recogn 10 a ance sheet

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

Defined Benefit Obligation 202.2 175.5
Fair value of plan assets 146.7 51.8
Closing net defined benefit Iiability/(asset) 55.6 123.7

ised'bl

For the year ended
March 31 2024

For the year ended
March 31 2023

100% 100%

The prinCipal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plan are shown below:
Demographie Assumptions
Expected average future working life is considered as 4.25 years ( 6.32 years in 3IMarch, 2023).
Moriality: Moriality has been assumed to be Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate (lALM u1t).
Disability:'No explicit allowance has been made for disabilities.

Financial assumptions

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 Marcb 31 2023

% %
Discount rate 7.2% 7.4%
Employee turnover 23.0% 15.0%
Expected rate of increment in compensation levels 7.0% 8.0%

A Quantitative sensitiVity analysis for siltDificsnt assumptions as at Marcb 31, 2024·is as shown below:
Defined benefit oblie:ation

Assumptio.us For the year ended March 31, 2024 For tbe year ended March 31, 2023

Increase by 100 Decrease by 100 Increase by 100 basis Decrease by 100 basis
basis points basis points points points

Discount Rate (195.5) 209.7 (167.1) 184.9
Expected rate of increment in compensation levels 208.3 (1967 183,4 (168.3

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the Present value of obligation and aids in
understanding the uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying one parameter at a time and studying its impact

Tbe fotlowinl! is tbe maturity profile of defmed benefit obligation (undiscounted):

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 Ma rch 31 2023

Within the next 12 months (next-annual reporting period) 47.3 35.3
Between 2 and 5 years 127.1 86.1
Bevond 5 years 64.9 73.0

The fotlowin

35.3

For the year ended
March 31 2024

47.3

For tbe year ended
March 31 2023

Particulars

47.3
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II Leave Eneashment I CompeDllated Absences I Sick Leave

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick leave, privilege leave and casual leave.
The amount of the provision to be settled within next 12 months is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the
settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or
require payment within the next 12 months. The following table shows bifurcation of current and non-current provision for leave encashment.

Particulars Amount
Current leave obligations expected to be settled within the next 12 Months 55:6
Leave obligations expected to be settled be_y_ond12 months 133..9

189.5

The Company provides for accumulation of compensated absences by certain categories of its employees. These employees can carry forward a portion of unutiJised
compensated absences and utilise it in the future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof as per Company policy. The Company records an obligation for compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The measurement of such obligation is based on actuarial valuation
as at the Balance Sheet date carried out by qualified actuary on projected accrued credit method carried out for assessing the liability as on the reporting date.

The principal assumptions used in determining Leave obligation for the Company are shown below:

Demographic Assumptions
Mortality: Mortality for all periods has been assumed to be as per Indian Assured Lives Mortality (20l2-14).

Particulars For tbe year ended
Ma rcb 31 20B

Discount rate 7.2%
Expected rate of increment in compensation levels 7.0%
Employee turnover 23.00%.
Leave availment 0.0%
Retirement age 58-80 years
Wholetime Directors 80 years and others 58 years)

38 DETAILS OF PROVISIONS AND MOVEMENTS IN EACH CLASS OF PROVISION AS REQUIRED BYTHE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANADARD ON PROVISION,
CONTINGENT LlABD..ITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS (INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS -37)

Particulars Warranty
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year -
Additional provision made during the year 12.3
Amounts used/paid during the year -
Unused amount reversed during the year -
Carrying amounts at the end of the year 12.3

Brief description of tbe nature of the obligation and tbe expected timing of any resulting outflows of economic benefits :
The provision for warranty claims represents the present value of the management's best estimate of the future outflows of economic benefits that will be required
under the company's obligations for warranties under local sale of goods legislation.
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39 Finand.1 risk management
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's
operations. The Company's principal fmancial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations, The Company is exposed
to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management advises on fmanciaJ risks
and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The Company's senior management provides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with .the Company's policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised as below.

(a) Credit risk
Potential impact of risk Mana2ement oolicv Sensitivily 10 risk
Credit risk is the risk that a Customer credit risk is managed subject 10 the Company's policies, The Company considers the probability of default upon initial
counterparty will Dot meet its procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management. recognition and whether there have been significant increase in the
obligations under a financial Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any credit risk on ongoing basis throughout each reporting period, to
instrument or customer contract, shipments to major customers are generally covered by advances. An assess increase in the credit risk, the Company compares the rate 0
leading to a financial loss. The iropairment analysis based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model is default on the date of reporting and initial recognition.
Company is exposed to credit risk performed at each reporting date. Against these receivables. a provision for expected loss allowance is
from its operating activities, i.e, trade recognised.
receivables.

The movemeat in tbe allowaace for expected credit IOIJ for trade receivables is as follows:

Pirticulan As at As at
March 31 1024 March 31 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 303.3 355.8
Provision (reversedj/recognised for expected credit losses (29.8\ (52.5)
Balance at ibe end of the year 273.5 3OJ.J

In addition to the historical pattern of credit loss, the Company has considered the. likelihood of increased credit risk considering emerging situations. This assessment is based OD the
likelihood of the recoveries from the customers in the present situation. The Company closely monitors its customers who are going through financial stress and assesses actions such
as change in payment terms. recognition of revenue on collection basis etc .• depending on severity of each case. Basis this assessment, the allowance for doubtfu1 trade receivables is
considered adequate.

In addition, financial instruments that are subject' to concentration of credit risk include cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks and other financial assets. None of the
financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is liroited as the Company generally invest in deposits with
banks.

(bl Liauidi", risk
Potenlial impact of risk Mana2ement eoliev "Sensilivity to risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash
that the Company will not be able to funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and bank loans. equivalents. borrowings and the cash flow that is generated from
settle or meet its obligation ODtime or The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and operations. The Company believes that current cash and cash
at a reasonable price or there could be debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled overwith existing lenders. equivalents, tied up borrowing Jines and cash flow that is generated
excessive concentrations of risks. The Inorder to avoid excessive conceotrations of risk, the Company's policies from operations is sufficient to meet requirements. Accordingly,
Company's finance department is and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance a liquidity risk is perceived to below.The Company assessed the
responsible for liquidity. funding as a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are concentration of risk and 'concluded it to below. The foUowing table
well as settlement management. controUed and managed accordingly. shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities
Excessive concentrations of risks based on contractuaJIy agreedundiscounted cash flows as at the
arise when a number of counterparties Balance Sheet date.
are engaged in siroiIar business
activities, or activities in the same
geographical region. or have
economic features that would cause
their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economic, political or
other conditions. Concentrations
indicate the relative sensitivity of the
Company's performance 10
developments affecting a particular
industry.

F til f h C Ii Is:ollowin2 table summariSes tbe matur~ty pro leo t e o~panyt8 Inandal UabiUtles based on tbe contractual undiscounted paymen

Particulan A. at March 31,1024
Leu than 1 year 1-5 vean > S years Total

Borrowings - current 4,481.8 - 4,481.8
Borrowings - non-current -
Lease liabilities 126.9 520.2 42.4 689.5
Trade payables 6,183.1 73.2 - 6,256.3
Other financial liabilities 584.4 584.4

Particulars A. 01March 31, 2023
Less than lx.ar 1-5 vears > S.vean Total

Borrowings - current 2,821.8 2,821.8
Borrowings - non-current 199.1 199.1
Lease liabilities 56.1 258.1 90.8 405.0
Trade payables 7,062.6 60.8 - 7,123.4
Other liabilities SA7.7 - 547.7
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(c) MI rket risk
Potential impact of risk I Mana2ement J!ollcv Sensitiv,ity to risk
lillnterest.rate risk
The Company is mainly exposed to In order to manage its interest rate risk arising from variable interest rate As an estimation of the approximate impact of the interest rate risk.
interest rate risk due to its variable borrowings, the Company borrows from various banks in accordance with with respect to financial instruments, the Company has calculated
interest rate borrowings. The interest the framework set by the Finance department. the impact of a 25 bps change in interest rates. A 25 bps reduction
rate risk arises due to uncertainties in interest rates would have led to approximately an additionallJllR
about the future market interest rate of 11.2 lakhs and (2022-73: lNR 7.6 lakhs) gain in Statement of Profit
these borrowings. and Loss. A 25 bps increase in interest rates would have led to an

equal but opposite effect,
ii Foreign euhange risk
The Company has international The Company has exposure arising out of export, import, and other As an estimation of the approximate impact of the foreign exchange
operations and is exposed to foreign transactions. rate risk, with respect to financial statements, the Company has
exchange risk arising from foreign calculated the impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
currericy transactions. Foreign following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to • possible change in
exchange risk arises from commercial EUR and USD exchange rates, with all other variables held
transactions and recognised. Financial constant. The Company'. exposure to foreign currency changes for
assets and liabilities denominated in • all other currencies is not material.
currency that is not the Company's
functional currency (IJIlR).The risk
also includes highly probable foreign
currency cash flows. The Company
has exposure arising out of export,
import, and other transactions.

Foreign currency exposure and A. at Mlrcb 31 1014 As at Marcb 31 2013
sensitivitv USD I EURO USD I EURO

Amount_][iven below are in Rs Lakh. Amount viven below are in Rs Lakh.
Trade Receivables 76.9 I 297.5 I -
Trade Pavables 14)1 (2.0) - I -

Total 75.5 fMl 29'7,5 -
Considering the quantum of foreign currency receivables and payables as compared to total receivables and payables, the company has nor opted for hedging against currency
fluctuations.

40 Capilal management
The Company's capital comprises equity share capital and other equity attributable to equity holder s,
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to :
• safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
• maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,
The Company monitors capital using net debt-equity ratio, which is net debt (i.e.Total Debt - Cash and Cashequivalents) divided by total equity. These ratios are illustrated below:

Particula.r. As al Ma rcb 31 2014 As at March 31 2023
Total debt 4,481.8 3,021.0
Less: cash and cash ecuivalents 0.5 0.5
Nel deht 4,481.3 3,020.5
Tolal eouitv 3,226,5 2766.0
Debt-eauitv ratio 1.4 1.1

41 FI.andal Instrume.ts : Fair Values

(a) Categories of finandal instruments-

Belew is a comparison by close. of the earryin2 amount or the company's financial instruments
Particulan As at Marcb 31,1014 A. at Marcb 31,2013

FVPL FVOCI Amortized cost FVPL FVOCI Amortized cost
FinaDeial assets
Trade receivables 6,010.9 5,692.7
Cash and cash equivalents 0.5 - 0.5
Other financial assets 121.1 - 155.9
Other bank balance 165.5 409.0
Total financial assets - - 6.298.0 - - 6.258.1

Finaneialliabilities
Borrowings - current 4,481.8 - 2,821.8
Borrowings- non-current - 199.1
Lease liabilities 689.5 405,0
Trade payables - 6.256.3 - - 7,123.4
Other liabilities - - 584.4 547.7
Total finB.ci.lliabilll.ies - - 12011.0 - - 11 097.0

The management assured that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying
amount largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

(b) Fair value bierarcby:
As per Ind AS 107 "Financial Instrument: Disclosure', fair value disclosures are not required when the carrying amounts reasonably approximate the fair value, As illustrated above, all
financial instruments of the company are valued at amortized cost which approximates the fair value
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42 Income tax expense
This note provides an analysis of Company's income tax expense, shows amounts that are recognized directly in equity and
how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in
relation to Company's tax positions.

(a) Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 3h2024 March 31. 2023

Income tax expense ,

Current Tax
Current tax on profits for the year 265.8 311.1

Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences _(91.9) (14.0)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 173.9 297.1

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutory tax rate:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mar312023

Profit before taxes 633.8 1,133.2

Applicable income tax rate of25.168% (March 31,2023: 25.168%) 159.5 285.2
Others disallowances 14.4 11.9
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 173.9 297.1
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43 OpcrlliaC SegmeAu :

/L. Bub-for aegmeatiltio.

An operatina segmeot'IS a segmeoi «the Companythat engages in business activaacs from which il may cam revenue and incur cxpenses, incJudingrevenues and ~ ·that'relate to,transactiOns'with any of the Company's other segments and for
which dis=tefuw.ci.1 infoonatioo ~ available. All operating _' operating results are reviewed rogulMlx by theCooIpany'. Monagins Director 10ouake deeisiOll$ about resources 10be oUocaled10the-"' and asses, tbeir pcr{onuoncc.

The Company has two roponable -"' as desaibcd below, which an: theCompany'. strategic business elus.... :
(i) Cluster I comprising1_ly GridiJig SolutionS
(ii) Cluster2 comprisinglargelyConveyingSol"" ... and CleanAir Solutions

The Company's operBling bua.inesscs are OIJ.IUliz.cd and managed separately according tc the nature of products and services provided,with each segment rcprescoting a s'tnilegic business cluster that offen diffcreot products and 5CfVCS specific industries.
Each business cluster is manascd by. a Cluster Head who is responsible for the entire sales, services and opc::rations.ofthe clsster. The analysis of§eographicaJ acgments is besed on the areas in which major operating divisioos- of the, COmpany operate.
For each of the hll5.inessdustin. the: Companys Chief ()pcrati.na: DccisiQD Maker reviews int.cmal man.emcru repQi1S on 8monlhJybasis.

B. l.fomutio. about reporUbk:segmeau

lnfonnatioo regarding the resultsof each reportable segment is included.below. Perfonnaoce is measured based on segmentprofit (before tax). as includedin the internal maDagementreports that are reviewed by the Company's0Uef 0pcrating Decision
Maker. Setmeol profit is used tomeasure pcrftirmancc as IJliUlaiCIDCDlbelieves that'such informationi. the most relevant in evaluatins'the results of certain scg,mentsreletive to other,entities 'that opct'ate withinthese industries.

For lite y....... ded March31,2014 For lite year ..... March31, lOU
Particulan Total TotalaMlt.c.r-l a..ter-2

(I +2) a.lter·1 Chllter·l
(I +2)

Seameat Rcn.lIt
Cal Revenues domestic: 6,1·46.3 24,900.1 31.046.4 7,72U 12,S52.6 205SI.1
(b) Rev.",,,,,, cxoort 145.1 426.7 m.8 649.2 1,127.9 1777.2

Totalseg:meat meauc~encrul 6,291.5 25,326.3 31,(i18.2 8,377.3 13,980.5 22,358.3

SegmeA. ReIolu
Profit before ta"t_and {lJW)OC cost,frtjm seamcDt (629.2) 1,837.0 1.207.S 707.9 SOH UIO.7
Less: Firuuv;ecosts (nct) 257.4 316.6 574.0 29S.5 79.2 377.7

Profit from ordi.ary activities after_rmute COlt
(886.6) 1,520.4 633.8 (298.5) (79.2) 1,133.0

but before- tax
Tax expense 173.9 297.1

Profil from qlDtia.i.& opuatioal after tax 459.9 835.9

Sc...-Assets 5,399.7 13,468.7 18.868.4 7,478.2 11,750.2 19.228.5
SegmentLiabilities 2,487.8 9,006.4 11,494.2 4508.3 9,i75.5 13,684.0

Net-AUClJ 2,91J.9 4,461.4 7.1742 2,969.9 2,574.7 5_.... .5

Capital Expcnditun:during the year 319.0 202.1 521.1 454.3, 68LS 1,135..8
Non Cash expeoditun:relaJcd10 the_ 260.0 164.7 424.7 112.9 169.4 282.3

C. RecoetillatJoa of iIIformatioa oa reoortab6e aeemtDtI to lad AS measura

Paniculan
AI at Marcb ll, A,,, March31,

2024 2023

i.Aueu
Total assets furn:po<t.ablc_"'" 18,868.4 19,228.5
Dcfcm:d Ta'(Asset 334.1 242.4

Tow A..... 1!1.l!!l.S: 194709

ii.. Liabilities
Total liabilities for "'f)Ofta.bleseg.menlS 11,494.2 13,684.0
Equily 3,226.5 2,766.0
a...cr.1 Borrowing. 4,481.7 3020.9

TolJtIEquity ud Liabilities 19,2e1.4 19,470.7

D. Gco&rIlP..icai ia.fonnatioa

Panicuian

3"1.046.4
571.8

20.581.1
1.777.2

For tbe year For the year
eltdedMardi 31. endedMatch 31.

2014 2023

i.~ Rtvtllae by localiOil of c"'omen
InIndia
0utsidc:1ndi.

316 8 Z~

ii. Non-curreat operatiag auetI by locatio. of aueu
There no DU'I~t assets located oulJidelndia.

E. Daring the year, two CUilOlD(n C-ODtJibUtcdIi;»1:9.8% ortbe rn"tllilt for the year.'Tbil wu spread acrOl1 multiple bipvalue laleS orden received rrom these cUJtomen. Tbcrt wu DOsiagle
customer coatributiDIL to more_thu 10·/. ofreve.aiN: ia tbe p_rnioUi year coded 311t Marcb 23.
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44 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115

(a) Revenue streams
The Company earns revenue in two business segments (Cluster 1 and Cluster 2). The revenue is earned from the manufacture and sale of
equipment for grinding solutions, conveying solutions and clean air solutions. The equipment are customized based on specific customer
requirements. (Refer note 43)

(b) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
In the following table, revenue from contracts.with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major products and service
lines and timing of revenue recognition

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Major product lines
Clusterl (Griding Solutions) 6,291.5 8,377.8
Cluster2 (Conveying Solutions and Clean Air Solutions) 25,326.7 13,980.5

31,618.2 22,358.3

P' h' I k t.rlmary 2e02rapi Ica mar e

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

India 31,046.4 20,581.1
Outside India 571.8 1,777.2

31618.2 22358.3

Timing of revenue recognition

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

Products transferred at point in time 4,842.1 1,271.0
Products transferred over a period of time 26,776.1 21,087.3

31,618.2 22,358.3

(cl Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

ParticuJars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue from operations 31,618.2 22,358.3
Less: Adjustments - Export incentives - (44.1)
Revenue from contracts with customers 31,618.2 22,314.3
Add: Adjustments (sales returns. discounts, etc.) - -
Revenue as per contracted price 31,618.2 22,314.3
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(d) Contract Balances
Contract assets primarily relate to the Company's rights to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting date from projects
and' customised contracts. Contract assets are transferred to Trade receivables on completion of milestones and related invoicing.

The Contract liabilities relate to unearned revenue and customer advances where performance obligations are yet to be fulfilled as per the
contracts. The fulfilment of the performance obligations will extinguish these liabilities and revenue will be recognised, with no impact on the
Company's cash positions on specific projects.

Particulars As at March 31 2024 As at March 31 2023
Trade Receivable (refer note 12)* 6,010.9 5,692.7

Contract asset (refer nete 15) 5,191.4 4,192.5

Contract liabilities (refer note 22) 3,591.4 5,213.6.. ..*Net of provision for expected credit losses as recogrused in accrodance with the provrsions oflnd AS 109 amountmg to INR 273.5 lakhs
(March 31, 2023: INR 303.3 lakhs)

Revenue recogmse rom amount IDC II, e ID contract la I ities at t e egmmng 0 t e year
Particulars As at March 31.2024 As at March 31_,_2023
Revenue recognised from amount included in contract

5,213.6 2,405.0liabilities at the beginning of the year
5213.6 2405.0

. dti . I d d i r bilitl h b . f h

(e) The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations as on March 31, 2024 is Rs.
9,041.2 lakhs (March 31, 2023 is Rs. 11,098.1 lakhs) and is expected to be recognized as revenue in the next year.

45 Amount spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is covered under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, and is required to contribute towards activities eligible under Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereto. Company's CSR activities for ongoing projects are (a) promotion of
education and enhancing vocational skills, (b) eradication of hunger and promoting hygiene, (c) promotion Of sports, (d) protection of national
heritage and promotion and development of traditional arts, (e) promotion of gender equality, and (t) other infrastructure that would help meet
the objectives of environmental sustainability such as waste management, verrni-culture, organic fanning, etc.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 13.5 12.9a)

b) An amount ofINR 14.0 lakhs was approved by the board towards CSR activities for the year ended March 31, 2024.

c)
For the year ended For the year ended

Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
- On purposes other than (i) above (in cash) - -

d) The Company has spent INR 14.0 lakhs as CSR expenses which is donated to Pravara Rural Education Society (INR 7.0 Lakhs), Sevavardhini
(INR 3.5 Lakhs) and Sudarshan CSR foundation (INR 3.5 Lakhs)
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e) Details of on20102 projects and other than on20102 projects

Particulars
For the year ended
March 31, 2024

0.1

0.1

Opening balance (balance of excess amount spent from previous years)
- with Company
- in separate unspent CSR account

Amount required to be spent during the year
(Net of previous year (shortj/Excess)

Amount spent during the year:
On ongoing projects
- From Company's bank account
- From separate unspent CSR account

Other than ongoing projects
- From Company's bank account
- From separate unspent CSR.account

(Short)lExcess CSR spend for the year

Closing balance
- with Company
- in separate unspent CSR account

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a+d)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

13.5 12.9

14.0 13.0

0.5 0.1

0.6
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46 Other .tl1ulOry informatio_DAIrequired by uolification iuued by Miuiltry of Corporate aR'ain dated 14th .March 2011 on ameudmentl on Schedule.11I

.) Rclatioos!>ipwith compagies stnIcl<off under section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or sectioo 560 of the Companies Ad 1956:

aosiDr: bdaaces-andnature oftrantadioDJ

Baloo« OUuw.diD& Transactioas durinl the year Relationlhip

Name of struck off comp'any Nature of traaumODl with with the
stnad--ofl"company As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, Aa at March JI, _off

2014 2023 2024 2023 compaD)'

Kohli Enginceri"" 81; PowerManagement Private Limited Trade payables 557.9 Nooc
Extreme Automatioo Pvt Ltd TrlIdc~l .. 3.9 Nooe

Discl .... re .r Tr ..... di.... with Supplier Entity Struck-Off by MCA -
During the tinanoial year ended March 31, 2024, the Company bad ttansadions with KohliEngineering 81; p"""Management Private Limited, • supplie<"""Jl3l1Ywhich has been struck off by the Ministry
of Corporate Affain (MCA) under Sedioo 248 .fthe Companl.:;s Act, 2013.
The tr3nsactions with Kohli Engineering& Power ~t Private Limited were prUnarily for providiog services towards ~oo "f Silos and supply of manpower . The supplier cnlity bas completed the
agreed-upon work, and tbete are no outstanding payables tn the eanty as at the balance sheet date.
It is pertinent to note that the Company has avail~ input credit for the invoices'from the supplier entity, and there have been no noe-compheeces impacting the input credit avai1meot.

TheCompany has duly considered the implications of the supplier entity being struck off by the MCA and has assessed any &Sl;OCiated risks. Managctnelll helieves tbaI the completion of work and absence of
outstanding payables mitigaJe aoy immediate tinanciaJ impact 00 the Company.

47 TheCompany bas used aci:ouriting software for maintainingits books of _ which bas a feature of recording.audit trail (edit log) facibry and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactioos recorded in the softmue, except tbaI audit trail fe'ature is not enabled for certain chang", if any mode using certain administrative access rights to the SAP KANA software. These administrative
rights were restricted to limited users. Further, these administrative eccees rights at the applicatioo have been revokedand audit trail feature at database is enabled subsequent to the year end. Further no
instance of audit trail feature being tampcn:d with was noted in respect of such aci:ouriting software when: the auditlnlil bas been enabled.

48 Tbt Code on Social Security,2020
The Code 00 Social Se<urity, 2020 CCode') rtIating.to emplOyeesbenefilS during employmcni and post-employment benefits re<civcd Presidential assent in Scptembtr 2020, The Code bas been published in
theOu.eue of India. However, the date on which the Cod<:will come into effect has'not been notified and the final ruJesiintorprt:tationhave rot yet been issued. The Company MIl assess the impact of the Cod<:
"ben it Comes into effeCt and will record my related impact.in the J><tiod the Code becomes effoctivc.
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.9 Rd.ted,.11)' Tnbl.ctlDllJ (.1 per lad AS 101011I'I!'~party InlllHttoa 'pednectwilier tedJon 113DCChI!Cump.. let Act, 2013)

HaldJ.. CCIIIIpuy:
Sudanban CbeuUcals lndUllrics Limited

Fellow_ub.ldlov:
SudMrshan CSR Foo:ndation
(Sudanhan CSR FOUDd.at.tion(CSR F~);. ~yowrxd subsidYry of'Sudanban Cbcmica.I-IndUJllics Limited, i.s a Mno( for twofit eomp.ny'" under Sa:tioo 8 oftbe C«npenies Act. 2013. The maio objcctiYe.ofCSR
rouodlltioQ is lD,cmyout CSR.ativitic:s asper !heCSR-policic:s,)""'_............ ,
Mr.Oat. Damania '(Chainnan·fndcpCDdeolDirector)
Mr. P R Ralbi (Non-E~yt Din:ctor)

Mr.'N 'Rathi (Noo.:Exccuti\tDiroctor)
Mr.R BRathi (Noo-Exa:uive DIrector)

Mr" S hdmanabhan (lndcpendent Di:nlctor)

Mr.ViW R.Bbotia (Managina'DiR<wr)
Mr.MmiWM.VeW>J<.(t;_y_)
M<. Mcdha Gotbalc (CFO)

Mr.MaheshPatil (Wholc-timeDirtctor w.efJuly 30. 2021)

HoIdl.. C~pIIIlY

J.>

'lulU .....M.""' .... 2. "'''''''.2IU
..... 1 9.S
4.7 '2.4
2.1 1.1

2.0 25
2.0 2.S
2.0 2.S
2.0 2.S

12.6

14.6
4S.~ 3S

For tiM!yearflldtd MudI31 1114""'...._..
Penomtel

IleaulbCnlbMl CoMuulq DireckJr,
(.) Mr.Vibs R.Bhatia . 160.6

Rema.entiob 10Whole-tUMDirector
(a)Mr.MaliesbPaW 62.3

RemaHtII&.ID .... r KMP
(a}Ms.Modha Gokhak 26.9

SltH_Fen
(8)Mr. P'R Rathi
(b)Me.,R B Rathi
(c)Mr.NJR.athi
Cd) Mr.-Dan: Dmnani&
(e)Mr. -s Padmanabhan

0.8
0.4
I..
2.0
2.0

Com.II_1oa
fa.)Mr,PRRathi
(b) Mr.N" RaIhi
(e)Mr.Dara·n.muu.
(d)Mr. S Padtnanabhun

2.0
2.0
20
2.0

S.IeGlGoud.
S.ie.ofAud
Corporau C...... tec 0 ....
IakreJtoalol.
Rd.. bU'WlllftlI .., eIpeIUet

10 CSRdofI.tioa

151:2

F.enowI.btldlary· KeyMa...... 1
Penormel

FDrtheyear eaded Mlltdlll 2823

56." I

24.9

'1.2
O,Z
2.'
2.8
z.•

2.SO
2.SO
2.SO
2.SO

66.7

16.7

SO."
S.O 5.00

67.7
12.6
28.2
n.)
72.8

HoIdl ... COIIlp.ay

Sr.H hrtlad:an

Key M--terl" Pel'lOlloael
• Rcrntuieralion payable
<a1Mr, Vikas R. Bhatia
(blMr . .......,,· ... til
(c) Ms. MedhI Ookhale
• COmmissioo payable to din:Icwrs
(a)Mr. P R Rathi
(b) Mr.N IRatbi
(c)M:r. 'Dan0IImmia
(d)Mr.S Padmanabhan

HoIdl_gCoaipoy
· Receivable tl)t SAleor~
• Rent lncainc receivable
• fillaQCw ,;uanmlce c:harJes payable
· Payable roc in&unwce
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50 Ratio analysis and its elements

Particulars Asat As at Change in %March 31 2024 March 31 .2023

1.06 1.06 0%
1.39 1.09 27%

7.99 8.53 -6%

a) Current Ratio
(Current assets/ Current liabilities)

b) Debt-Equity Ratio
(Total debt / shareholder's equity)

c) Debt ServiceCoverage Ratio
(Net operating income/ Current debt obligations)
(Net operating mcome is Profit before tax + Interest +Depreciation -
Other Income)
(Current debt obligations is current maturity oflong term debts and
interest payment)

Comments

The total borrowings have increased in the current year due to increased
working capital requirement to sustain higher business volumes.

d) Return on Equity Ratio
(profit after taxi shareholder equity)

-52% The return on equity has reduced due to lower profitability on account
on margin erosion and higher provisions.

0.14 0.29

e) Inventory turnover ratio
(Cost of good sold! Inventory)

80%
Higher inventory turnover ratio reflects efficient management of

inventory, streamlined operations and enhanced demand forecasting.

4.59 2.55

f) Trade Receivablesturnover ratio
(Sale of goods/ Trade receivables)

34%
This increase is on account of more effective management of credit and
collections, tightened credit policies, and improved debtor monitoring.

5.26 3.92

g) Trade payables turnover ratio
(purchase of goods/ Trade payable)

22%2.67 2.19

h) Net capital turnover ratio
(Sale of goods/ Working. capital) (working capital = current assets -
current liabilities)

47%36.17 24.55 This .improvement reflects our enhanced efficiency in utilizing working
capital to support revenue generation, attributed to better inventory
management, optimized receivables and payables cycles.

i) Net profit ratio
(Net profit! Revenue)

-61% The net profit ratio has dipped on account of a drop in contribution
margins from projects, as well as provisions made against aged assets.

1% 4%

j) Return on Capital employed
(Earning before interest and taxes "EBIT"/ Capital Employed)
(Capital Employed is Equity +Total Debts)
tan ible net worth

-40%16% 26% The EBIT for the year has been achieved with higher revenues, despite a
drop in margins and provisions taken. The equity and debt levels have
risen in line with the business levels.
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51 Additional r~ul.tory informltion

(a) There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) either severally
or jointly with any other person.

(b) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated Or pending against the company for holding any Benanti property under the
Benanti transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made there under

(c) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017.

(d) There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts and that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Ac~ 1961 (such as, search Orsurvey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1%1).

(e) The Company has not traded or investedin crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.The company does not have balance of crypto currency or virtual
currency at the end of the fmancial. year.

(!) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
i.Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii.Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(g) The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:
i.Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii.Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

52 The remuneration paid i payable to directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, is in excess of the limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and is approved by the
shareholder through a special resolution in Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on May 16, 2024.

53 MeA has 'amendedRule 3 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (the "Accounts Rules") relating to the mode of keeping books of account and other books and papers in
electronic mode through an amendment on August 5, 2022. Incompliance with the requirements of the amendment, the books of accounts and other relevant books and records are
accessible inIndia at all times..Further, backup of books of account maintained inelectronic form is kept in servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

54 Additional regulatory information/disclosures as required by General Instructions to Division II of Schedule illto the Compaies Act, 2013 are furnished to the extent applicable to
the Company.

55 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reolassified as considered necessary to confirm with current period presentation wherever applicable.
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